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Directors’ Report 
To 
The Members 
SBI Macquarie Infrastructure Management Private Limited 
  
The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Sixteenth Annual Report of SBI Macquarie Infrastructure Management Private 
Limited (”the Company”) together with the audited accounts for the year ended 31 March 2024. 
 
1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & RESULTS 

 
a. FINANCIAL RESULTS  

The Company's performance during the year ended 31 March 2024 as compared to the previous financial year, is 
summarized below: 

       (Amount in INR in thousands) 
Particular Year ended 

31 March 2024 
Year ended 

31 March 2023 
Gross income 57,264 73,754 
Less: Expenses 31,510 67,263 
Profit before tax  25,754 6,491 
Less: Current tax expense / (benefit) 3,248 (1,563) 
Profit after tax  22,506 8,054 

 
                        APPROPRIATION                                                                      (Amount in INR in thousands) 

Interim dividend Nil Nil 
 Final dividend Nil Nil 
 Tax on distribution of dividend Nil Nil 

Transfer to General Reserve Nil Nil 
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 22,506 8,054 

 
b. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS  

During the year under review, the Company continued providing (1) management services to SBI Macquarie 
Infrastructure Trust (“SMIT”), a ‘Venture Capital Fund’ registered with the Securities and Exchange Board of India, under 
the Management Agreement entered into with SMIT, and (2) non-binding investment advisory services to Macquarie SBI 
Infrastructure Management Pte. Limited (“MSIMPL”), a Company incorporated in Singapore, under the Services 
Agreement entered into with MSIMPL. 
 
The term of SMIT was to come to an end on 19 April 2021. The Combined Investor Prudential Review Committee of 
SMIT and Macquarie SBI Infrastructure Fund - co-investor in 7 out of 7 investments made by SMIT (“the Combined 
IPRC”) and the Company approved the extension of the term of SMIT by two years, i.e. up to 19 April 2023 at nil 
management fees.   
 
Given the current term of SMIT ended on 19 April 2023, the Company continues to make all reasonable endeavours to 
realise the remaining assets held by SMIT having regards to the current market conditions and the regulatory 
environment.  
 
 
Further, the Company will continue to provide services to the Domestic Trust during this period in accordance with the 
Management Agreement. The Company has not received any fees from April 2020 and will not be receiving any fees for 
the services it provides during this windup period. 
 
 

c. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS 
During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business. 
 

d. PERFORMANCE 
During the year under review, the Company earned a total income of INR 57,264 thousand as compared to INR 73,754 
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thousand in the previous year. The profit after tax for the year was INR 22,506 thousand as compared to profit after tax 
of INR 8,054 thousand in the previous year. The profit after tax has increased due to the Company earning higher fair 
value gain on mutual fund investments and due to the Company incurring lower expenses following reversal of prior 
expenses accrued. 
 

e. REPORT ON PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES 
During the year under review, the Company did not have any subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies and 
hence, reporting under this heading is not applicable.  

 
f. DIVIDEND 

With a view to conserve resources, your Directors have thought it prudent not to recommend any dividend on the paid-
up share capital of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024. 
 

g. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 
The Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to reserves during the year under review.  
 

h. REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
There was no revision of the financial statements during the year under review. 

 
i. DEPOSITS 

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted/ renewed any deposit pursuant to provisions of Section 73 of 
the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014.  

 
j. DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 134(3)(l) OF THE ACT 

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments which could affect the Company’s 
financial position have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and date of this report. 

 
k. DISCLOSURE OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL 

No significant and material orders have been passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal which can have impact on the going 
concern status and the Company’s operations in future. 

 
l. PARTICULAR OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES 

The details of transactions/ contracts / arrangement entered into by the Company with related party(ies), as defined 
under the Act, are furnished in Annexure I and forms part of this report.  
 
Further, related party transaction disclosure in accordance with the requirement of IND-AS 24 has been disclosed in 
notes section of financial statement. 
 

m. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE ACT 
The Company has not given any loans, or guarantees, or made any investments in securities under Section 186 of the 
Act during the financial year under review.  
 

n. ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION FOR LOANS 
As there are no loans from Banks and Financial Institutions, disclosure about details of difference between amount of 
the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial 
Institutions is not applicable.  
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2. MATTERS RELATED TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
a) BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 
During the year under review the following Directors resigned from the Board:  
Ms. Victoria Hilda Rigby Delmon (DIN: 09525935) with effect from 18 April 2023; 
Mr. Sankaranarayanan Jayasankar (DIN: 10049279) with effect from 22 June 2023; and  
Mr. Rajay Kumar Sinha (DIN: 09218041) with effect from 6 July 2023.  
 
The Board of Directors appointed Mr. Satyendra Kumar Singh (DIN: 10192181) and Mr. Samir Sawhney (DIN: 09224977) 
as Additional Directors of the Company with effect from 30 June 2023 and 20 September 2023 respectively to hold the 
office up to the date of the next Annual General Meeting.  
 
During the year under review, the shareholders at the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting held on 22nd August, 2023 
approved appointment of Mr. Abhimanyu Diwan (DIN: 10046685) and Mr. Satyendra Kumar Singh (DIN: 10192181) as 
Director of the Company.   
 
The Board of Directors proposes the candidature of Mr. Sawhney for appointment as Director and necessary resolution 
for his appointment has been included in the Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting for seeking approval of 
members.  

 
As at 31st March 2024, the Board of Directors comprised of: 
 

i. Mr. Deep Gupta (DIN: 07222383);  
ii. Mr. Samir Sawhney (DIN: 09224977); 
iii. Mr. Abhimanyu Diwan (DIN: 10046685); and 
iv. Mr. Satyendra Kumar Singh (DIN: 10192181). 
 
Ms. Barkha Hinduja is appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company. The Company does not have any Key 
Managerial Personnel.  

 
3. DISCLOSURES RELATED TO BOARD, COMMITTEES AND POLICIES 

 
a. BOARD & COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

The Board of Directors met four (4) times on 25 April 2023, 14 August 2023, 7 December 2023 and 29 February 2024 
during the financial year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the provisions of the Act and rules made there under. 
The gap between two consecutive meetings was not more than 120 days as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
  
The CSR Committee was dissolved by the Board of Directors at their Meeting held on 21 April 2022 as the provisions of 
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules were no longer applicable to the Company. 
 
The details of attendance at the Board Meetings held during the financial year ended 31 March 2024 is as follows: 
 

Name of the Director No. of Board Meetings attended 
Mr. Deep Gupta 1 out of 4  
Mr. Sankaranarayanan Jayasankar1 1 out of 1 
Mr. Rajay Kumar Sinha2 1 out of 1 
Ms. Victoria Hilda Rigby Delmon3 0 out of 0 
Mr. Abhimanyu Diwan 3 out of 4 
Mr. Satyendra Singh4 3 out of 3 
Mr. Samir Sawhney5 1 out of 2 

Notes: 
 

1. Mr. Sankaranarayanan Jayasankar ceased to be the Director with effect from 22 June 2023. 
2. Mr. Rajay Kumar Sinha ceased to be the Director with effect from 6 July 2023.  
3. Ms. Victoria Hilda Rigby Delmon ceased to be the Director with effect from 18 April 2023 
4. Mr. Satyendra Singh was appointed as an Additional Director with effect from 30 June 2023.  
5. Mr. Samir Sawhney was appointed as an Additional Director with effect from 20 September 2023.  
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b. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
In terms of Section 134(5) of the Act, in relation to the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
31 March 2024, the Board hereby confirms that: 

 
a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper 

explanation relating to material departures; 

b. such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and the Directors made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at 31 March 2024 and of the profit of the Company for that year; 

c. proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities;  

d. the going concern basis of preparation is no longer appropriate and that management has assessed that all the 
assets and liabilities are current and their carrying value approximates the realisable value at balance sheet date; 
and 

e. proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

c. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
The Board of the Company has designed a risk management policy and guidelines to avoid events, situations or 
circumstances which may lead to negative consequences on the Company's businesses and define a structured 
approach to manage uncertainty and to make use of these in their decision making pertaining to all business divisions 
and corporate functions. Key business risks and their mitigation are considered in the annual/strategic business plans 
and in periodic management reviews. 
 

d. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 
The Company is required to self assess the operating effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting pursuant 
to Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. It is required to implement additional controls if the risks of misstatement of 
financial reporting are not sufficiently mitigated. The management assessed the operating effectiveness of the controls 
during the year and found them operating effectively. 
 

e. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY 
 
As per the CSR provisions under the Companies Act, 2013 every company which ceases to meet the prescribed 
threshold of net profit or turnover or net worth for three consecutive financial years shall not be required to incur CSR 
expenditure till such time it meets the criteria again. The Company did not meet the prescribed limits of net profits/ 
turnover/net worth for the immediately preceding three financial years i.e. FYE 31.03.2021, FYE 31.03.2021 and FYE 
31.03.2023 and consequently, for FY 2023-24, the Company was not required to incur CSR expenditure.  
 
Pursuant to the non-applicability of the CSR provisions the CSR Committee was dissolved by the Board during the FY 
2022-23 based on the recommendation of the said Committee. Thus, the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules were no longer applicable to the Company. 
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4. AUDITORS AND REPORTS 
 
The matters related to auditors and their reports are as under: 
 
a. OBSERVATIONS OF STATUTORY AUDITORS ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH  2024 

The observations made by the statutory auditors in their report for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 read with the 
explanatory notes therein are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further explanation or comments from 
the Board under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

b. FRAUD REPORTING 
During the year under review, there were no instances of material or serious fraud falling under Rule 13(1) of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, by officers or employees reported by the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company during the course of the audit. 
 

c. RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS  
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, private companies with paid up capital of Fifty crore or above or any company having public borrowings 
from financial institutions, banks or public deposits of rupees Fifty crore or above shall not appoint or reappoint an audit 
firm as auditor for more than two terms of five consecutive year. The provisions related to mandatory rotation of auditors 
is not applicable to the Company as the paid up capital of the Company is less than Fifty crore. Accordingly, Price 
Waterhouse, LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership, having Firm Registration Number of 301112E/E300264 (erstwhile Price 
Waterhouse, Chartered Accountants having Registration Number 301112E), being eligible, were re-appointed as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company at the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting held on 22 August 2023, for a term of 5 
years i.e. from the conclusion of the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the Twentieth Annual 
General Meeting.  

 
 

5. OTHER DISCLOSURES 
 
Other disclosures as per provisions of Section 134 of the Act read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended from time 
to time) are furnished as under: 
 
a. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

With the notification of the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2021, dated 5th March, 
2021 (‘Amendment Notification 2021’) the erstwhile Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014 has been substituted to do away with the requirement of attaching the extract of annual return with the Board’s 
Report completely subject to the condition that the web-link of the annual return is disclosed in the same.  
 
However, the Company does not have a functional website. Therefore, the extract of Annual Return for the financial 
year ended 31 March 2024 made under the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act is attached as Annexure II which 
forms part of this Report. 
 

b. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 
The Company is in compliance with all the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India. 
 

c. SHARE CAPITAL: 
During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares and hence, disclosures under Section 43(a)(ii), 
Section 54(1)(d) and Section 62(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules are not required to be 
furnished. The Company does not have a scheme of ESOP and hence disclosures pursuant to Section 67(3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are also not required to be furnished. 
 

d. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGOING:  
Considering the nature of operations of the Company, the Directors have nothing to report regarding conservation of 
energy and technology absorption.  
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Details of foreign exchange earned and spent during the year under review are as follows: 
 

         Foreign exchange earnings and Outgoing:                     (INR in thousands)  
 Year ended  

31 March 2024 
Year ended  

31 March 2023 
Actual Foreign Exchange earnings 12,322 40,677 
Actual Foreign Exchange outgo 858 684 

 
 

e. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS 
 
The provisions of maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under the provisions of Section 
148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company and accordingly no such accounts and records are 
required to be made and maintained. 
 

f. APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 
2016: 
 
During the year under review, the company did not file any application or have any pending proceeding under the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
 

g. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 
 
The company is not required to constitute Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as the Company does not have more than 10 
employees. The Macquarie Group, in compliance with the requirement of the Act, has constituted an Internal Committee 
for its Indian entities, which deals with all formal complaints and allegations of Sexual Harassment by female employees. 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, no case pertaining to sexual harassment at workplace has been reported to the 
Company during F.Y. 2023-24. 
  
 

6. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND APPRECIATION 
 
The Directors would like to express their grateful appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received from the 
shareholders, bankers and government authorities. The Directors are happy to place on record their gratitude to the 
management team for their commitment and dedicated efforts.  

 
 
For and on behalf of the Board  
 
 
 
 
 
Samir Sawhney   Abhimanyu Diwan 
Director    Director 
DIN: 09224977    DIN: 10046685  
   
Date: 26 April 2024         
Place: Mumbai 
 
Registered Office  
92, Level 9, 2 North Avenue, 
Maxer Maxity, Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (East), Mumbai- 400 051 
 
CIN: U74140MH2008PTC184628 
Tel No.: +91 22 6720 4000 Fax No.: +91 22 6720 4302 
Mail: Deep.Gupta@macquarie.com 
 

ABHIMANY
U DIWAN

Digitally signed by 
ABHIMANYU DIWAN 
Date: 2024.04.26 
18:17:10 +05'30'

SAMIR 
SAWHNEY

Digitally signed by 
SAMIR SAWHNEY 
Date: 2024.04.26 
19:42:07 +05'30'
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ANNEXURE I 
 

Form No. AOC-2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in 
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso 
thereto 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis - Nil 

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship  
Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions  
Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions  
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transactions including the value, if any 

 

Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions 

 

Date(s) of approval by the Board  
Amount paid as advances, if any  
Date on which the special resolution was passed in 
general meeting as required under first proviso to section 
188 

 

 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis 

Name(s) of the related party and nature of 
relationship 

Macquarie 
Infrastructure and 
Real Assets (India) 
Private Limited, 
Fellow subsidiary 

Macquarie SBI 
Infrastructure 
Management Pte 
Limited, Fellow 
subsidiary 

SBI Macquarie Infrastructure Trustee 
Private Limited, Fellow subsidiary 

Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions Reimbursement of 
expenses under 
Shared Facilities 
Agreement 

Provision of non-
binding investment 
advisory services 

Reimbursement of 
liabilities settled on 
behalf of the 
Company 

Payment of Trustee 
Fees of INR 
7,00,000 (Rupees 
Seven Lakh) per 
annum by Company 
to SMITPL with 
effect from 20 April 
2020. 

Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ 
transactions 

Continuous Continuous - Continuous  

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements 
or transactions including the value, if any 

Cost reimbursement Invoice to be billed at 
cost plus mark up 

- Annual payment of 
Trustee Fees from 
20 April 2020 
onwards. 

Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any September 25, 2013 September 25, 2009 - 30 April 2020 
Amount paid as advances, if any as at   
March 31, 2024 

- - - Nil 

 
For and on behalf of the Board  
 
 
 
 

Date: 26 April 2024 
Place: Mumbai 
    

Samir Sawhney 
Director  
DIN: 09224977 

Abhimanyu Diwan 
Director 
DIN: 10046685  

ABHIMAN
YU DIWAN

Digitally signed by 
ABHIMANYU DIWAN 
Date: 2024.04.26 
18:18:40 +05'30'

SAMIR 
SAWHNEY

Digitally signed by 
SAMIR SAWHNEY 
Date: 2024.04.26 
19:42:44 +05'30'
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ANNEXURE II 
 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
As on financial year ended on 31 March 2024 

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014] 

 
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 
 

CIN : U74140MH2008PTC184628 
Registration Date : July 14, 2008 
Name of the Company : SBI Macquarie Infrastructure Management Private Limited 
Category / Sub-Category of the 
Company 

: Company limited by shares/ Indian Non-Government Company 

Address of the Registered office 
and contact details 

: 92, Level 9, 2 North Avenue,  Maker Maxity, Bandra Kurla 
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai- 400 051. 
E-mail id:- Barkha.Hinduja@macquarie.com 

Whether listed company                     : No 
Name, Address and Contact  
details of Registrar and Transfer 
Agent, if any: 

: Not Applicable 

 
II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 
 

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:- 
Sl. No. Name and 

Description of 
main products/ 
services 

NIC Code of 
the Product/ 
service 

% to total 
turnover of the 
company 

1 The Company provides non-binding 
investment advisory services to 
Macquarie SBI Infrastructure 
Management Pte. Limited 

66190 100% 

 
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES  
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name and address of 
the 
Company 

CIN / GLN Holding / 
subsidiary / 
associate 

% of shares 
held 

Applicable 
section 

1 Macquarie India 
Infrastructure 
Management Holdings 
Pte Limited-Singapore  

FCRN - 
200823500E 

Holding 
Company 

51% 2(87)(ii) 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary Company or Associate Company.  
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity): 
 

i. Category-wise Share Holding: 
 

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of 
the year 

% Change 
during 
the year 

 Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

 

A. Promoters     -     
(1) Indian     -     
a)Individual/ 
HUF 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Central 
Govt 

- - - - - - - - - 

c) State 
Govt(s) 

- - - - - - - - - 

d) Bodies 
Corp. 

- - - - - - - - - 

e) Banks / FI - 18,569,186 18,569,186 45% - 18,569,186 18,569,186 45% - 
f) Any other - - - - - - - - - 
Sub-
total(A)(1): 

- 18,569,186 18,569,186 45% - 18,569,186 18,569,186 45% - 

          
(2) Foreign -    -     
a) NRIs - 
Individuals 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Other – 
Individuals 

- - - - - - - - - 

c) Bodies 
Corp. 

- 21,045,078 21,045,078 51% - 21,045,078 21,045,078 51% - 

d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 
e) Any other - 1,650,458 1,650,458 4% - 1,650,458 1,650,458    4%  - 
Sub-total 
(A)(2): 

- 22,695,536 22,695,536 55% - 22,695,536 22,695,536 55% - 

Total 
shareholding 
of Promoter 
(A) = 
(A)(1)+(A)(2) 

- 41,264,722 41,264,722 100% - 41,264,722 41,264,722 100% - 
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B. Public 
Shareholding 

- - - - - - - - - 

(1) Institutions - - - - - - - - - 
a) Mutual 
Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 
c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - - 
d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - -  
e)Venture 
Capital Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

f)Insurance 
Companies 

- - - - - - - - - 

g) FIIs - - - - - - - - - 
h)Foreign 
Venture Capital 
Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

i) Others 
(specify) 

- - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total 
(B)(1): 

- - - - - - - - - 

          
(2)Non-
Institutions 

- - - - - - - - - 

a) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - - 
i) Indian - - - - - - - - - 
ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - - 
b) Individuals - - - - - - - - - 
i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital upto Rs. 
1 lakh 

- - - - - - - - - 

ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital in 
excess of Rs 1 
lakh 

- - - - - - - - - 

c) Others 
(specify) 

- - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total(B)(2): - - - - - - - - - 
Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(
2) 

- - - - - - - - - 
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C. Shares held 
by 
Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs 

- - - - - - - - - 

          
Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 

- 41,264,722 41,264,722 100% - 41,264,722 41,264,722 100% - 

 
ii. SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS: 

 
Sl. 
No. 

Shareholder’
s 
Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year 

Shareholding at the end of the 
year 

 

  No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
Compa
ny 

% of 
Shares 
Pledged
/ 
encumb
ered to 
total 
shares 

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares of 
the 
Company 

% of 
Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbe
red to 
total 
shares 

% change 
in share 
holding 
during 
the year 

1 State Bank of 
India 

18,569,186 45% - 18,569,186 45% - - 

2 Macquarie 
India 
Infrastructure 
Management 
Holdings Pte 
Limited 

21,045,078 51% - 21,045,078 51% - - 

3 International 
Finance 
Corporation 

1,650,458 4% - 1,650,458 4% - - 

 Total 41,264,722 100% - 41,264,722 100% - - 
 

iii. CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING  
 
There was no change in Promoters’ shareholding during the year. 
 

Sl. 
No. 

 
 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year 

Cumulative Shareholding during the 
year 

  No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
Company 

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the Company 

 At the beginning of the year 41,264,722 100% 41,264,722 100% 
 Date wise Increase/ Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/transfer/bonus/ sweat equity 
etc) 

- - - - 

 At the end of the year 41,264,722 100% 41,264,722 100% 
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iv. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF 
GDRS AND ADRS): 
 
As on 31 March 2024, the Company’s entire shareholding is held by the Promoters and therefore disclosure under this head is not 
applicable to the Company. 
 

Sl. 
No. 

 
 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year 

Cumulative Shareholding during the 
year 

 For each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of shares % of total shares 
of the Company 

No. of shares % of total shares 
of 
the Company 

 At the beginning of the year - - - - 
 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / 
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus / sweat equity etc) 

- - - - 

 At the end of the year ( or on the date 
of separation, if separated during the 
year) 

- - - - 

 
v. SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

 
As on 31 March 2024, none of the Directors and KMP of the Company hold shares in the Company and therefore disclosure under 
this head is not applicable to the Company. 
 

Sl. 
No. 

 
 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year 

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year 

 For each of the Directors and KMP No. of shares % of total shares 
of the Company 

No. of shares % of total 
shares of 
the Company 

 At the beginning of the year - - - - 

 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / 
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus / sweat equity etc) 

- - - - 

 At the end of the year  - - - - 
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V. INDEBTEDNESS: (Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment) 
 
As on 31 March 2024, the Company did not have indebtedness including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment and 
therefore disclosure under this head is not applicable to the Company. 
 
 

 Secured 
Loans 
excluding 
deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans 

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of 
the financial year 

    

i)    Principal Amount     
ii)   Interest due but not paid     
iii)  Interest accrued but not due     
Total (i+ii+iii)     
     
Change in Indebtedness during 
the financial year 

    

Addition     
Reduction     
Net Change     
     
Indebtedness at the end of the financial 
year 

    

Principal Amount     
ii)  Interest due but not paid     
iii) Interest accrued but not due     
Total (i+ii+iii)     

    
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 
 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:  
As on 31 March 2024, the Company did not have any Managing Director, Whole-time Director and/or Manager and therefore disclosure 
under this head is not applicable to the Company. 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/ WTD/ 
Manager 

Total 
Amount 

1 Gross salary   
 (a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-

tax Act,1961 
  

 (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961  
 

 

 (c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961  
 

 

2 Stock Option   
3 Sweat Equity   
4 Commission   
 - as % of profit   
 - others, specify   
5 Others, please specify   
 Total (A)   
 Ceiling as per the Act   
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B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS: 
 
 

Sl 
No.  

Particulars of Remuneration Fee for attending 
board / 
committee 
meetings 

Commission Others, please 
specify 

Total  

1 Independent Directors  - - - - 
N.A. - - - - 

 Total (1) - - - - 
2 Other Non-Executive 

Directors 
- - - - 

 - - - - 
  - - - - 
 Total (2)  - - - - 
 Total (B)=(1+2) - - - - 
 Total Managerial 

Remuneration 
- - - - 

 Overall Ceiling as per the 
Act 

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

 
 

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD 
 

                                                                                                                                       (INR in thousands) 
Sl. 
No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

   Company Secretary Total 
1 Gross salary - - 
 (a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
  

 (b) Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 

- - 

 (c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
Income tax Act, 1961 

- - 

2 Stock Option - - 
3 Sweat Equity - - 
4 Commission - - 
 - as % of profit - - 
 - others, specify - - 
5 Others, please 

specify 
- - 

 Total - - 
 
The Company does not have any other designated KMP apart from Company Secretary.  
 Ms. Barkha Hinduja has been appointed as Whole-time Company Secretary not in the capacity of Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company with effect from 14 February 2023, therefore the details of the Salary paid are not required to be furnished in the table above. 
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:  
 
There were no penalties or punishments or compounding of offences during the year ended 31 March 2024. 
 
For and on behalf of the Board  
 
 
 
 

Date: 26 April 2024 
Place: Mumbai 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Samir Sawhney 
Director  
DIN: 09224977 

Abhimanyu Diwan 
Director 
DIN: 10046685  
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YU DIWAN

Digitally signed by 
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Date: 2024.04.26 
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Chartered Accountants 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report  
 
To the Members of SBI Macquarie Infrastructure Management Private Limited  
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  
 
Opinion  
 
1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SBI Macquarie Infrastructure 

Management Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as  at March 31, 
2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes 
to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other 
explanatory information.  

 
2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, 
and total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes 
in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

 
Basis for Opinion 
 
3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 

Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
“Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

 
Emphasis of Matter  

4. We draw your attention to Note 2(a) to the financial statements, regarding the preparation of the 
financial statement on a realisable value basis given the Company’s intention to initiate the 
winding up activities as soon as practicable. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 
Other Information 
 
5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial 
statements 

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 

7. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of 
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
  

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control.  
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 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances; but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.   

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
  

11. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements  

12. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 
A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.   
 

13. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  
 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the back-up of the books 
of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode, on servers physically 
located in India, has not been maintained on a daily basis and except for the matters stated in 
paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) (“the Rules”). Refer note 34 and 35 in the financial 
statements. 

 
(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), 

the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account.  
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act.  
 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 
31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.  

(f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, 
reference is made to our remarks in paragraph 13(b) above on reporting under Section 
143(3)(b) and paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Rules. 

(g) Clause (i) of Section 143(3) on internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements is not applicable pursuant to notification G.S.R 583(E) dated 13 June 2017. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Rules, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:   

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 
its financial statements – Refer Note 25 to the financial statements. 
 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at 
March 31, 2024  

 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024. 
 

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in Note 36(vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

      
(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 

disclosed in the Note 36(vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received 
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding 
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

      
(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

      
v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.  



Price Waterhouse LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of SBI Macquarie Infrastructure Management Private Limited 
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements  
Page 5 of 5 

 
vi.   Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an 

accounting software operated by a third party service provider, for maintaining its books 
of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and that has been 
operating throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, 
except that the audit trail record does not contain the pre-modified values and audit trail 
has not been enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes.  Further, during 
the course of performing our procedures, we did not notice any instance of the audit 
feature being tampered with. 

 
14.  The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public 

companies. Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the 
Company. 

 

For Price Waterhouse LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 301112E/E300264 
 
 
 
Kapil Gupta 
Partner 
Membership Number: 127417 
 
UDIN: 24127417BKGZQM7387  
Place of the Signature: Mumbai 
Date: April 26, 2024  
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books 
of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge 
and belief, we report that: 
 
i.  (a) (A) The Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment during the year ended March 

31, 2024 and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(a)(A), 3(i)(b) and 3(i) (d) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company. 

 
(B) The Company does not have any Intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024 and 
accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  
 

(b) The Company does not own any immovable properties during the year ended March 31, 2024. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(c) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on 
the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions 
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 
1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the 
Company has appropriately disclosed the details in the financial statements does not arise.  

  
ii.  (a) The Company is in the business of rendering services and, consequently, does not hold any 

inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

        
(b)  During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits and accordingly, 

the question of our commenting on whether the quarterly returns or statements are in agreement 
with the unaudited books of account of the Company does not arise.     

 
iii.    The Company has not made any investments, granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in 

nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties during the year. Therefore, 
the reporting under clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b), (iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(f) of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company. (Also refer note 7 in the financial statements for existing 
investments). 

 
iv.  The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or 

security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under clause 
3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.   
 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred 
in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under. 

 
vi.          The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-

section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the services of the Company. Accordingly, reporting 
under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 

examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory 
dues, including goods and services tax, provident fund, income tax, cess, and other material 
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. 
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       (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, there are no statutory dues of provident fund, income tax, cess which have not 
been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of other statutory dues referred to in 
sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2024 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are 
as follows:  

 

Name of 
the 
statute 

Nature of 
dues 

Amount 
(Rs. In 
000’s) 

Period to which 
the amount 
relates 

Forum where the 
dispute is pending 

Remarks if 
any 

The 
Finance 
Act, 1994 

Goods and 
Service Tax 

2600* April 2017 to 
March 2020 

Customs, Excise and 
Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal 

Not 
Applicable 

*Out of this Rs. 260 thousands has been paid under protest. 
 

       
viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 

examined by us, there are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that 
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961.  
 

 
ix.  (a) As the Company did not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender during the year, 
 the reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit 

procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or 
financial institution or government or any government authority. 

 
(c) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, reporting 
under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by 
us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has 
not raised funds on short-term basis. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company. 
 

 (e) and (f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed
  by us, we report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 
 companies during the year.  Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause 3(ix)(f) of 
 the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
 

(x)(a)  The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer     
 (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of 
 the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(x)(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under 
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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(xi)(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across 
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during 
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.  

(xi)(b)   During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
 accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143(12) 
 of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under 
 clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xi)(c)  During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in 
  accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and as represented to us by 
  the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the 
  Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the 
  Company. 

 xii.       As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the 
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

xiii. The Company has not entered into transactions with related parties under the provisions of 
Section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party 
Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to 
constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly, to this extent, the 
reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xiv. In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal audit 
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Act.  

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him. 
Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the Act under 
clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
xvi.   (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company. 
 
(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during 
the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 
 
(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by 
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 
 
(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the 
Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not 
have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether 
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the information provided by the management is accurate and complete. Accordingly, the 
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
 

xvii.   The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 14,612 thousand in the financial year and of Rs. 
 22,801 thousand in the immediately preceding financial year. 

 
xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the 

reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios 
(Refer note no. 32), ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of 
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that 
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable 
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts 
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged 
by the Company as and when they fall due. (Also refer paragraph 4 of our audit report on the 
financial statements and Note 2(a) to the financial statements regarding the Company’s 
preparation of the financial statements on a realisable value basis). 
 

xx.  The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are not 
 applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not 
 applicable to the Company. 

 
xxi.  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone 

Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included 
in this report. 

 
 

For Price Waterhouse LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 301112E/E300264 
 
 
 
 
Kapil Gupta 
Partner 
Membership Number: 127417 
UDIN : 24127417BKGZQM7387 
 
Place of the Signature: Mumbai  
Date: April 26, 2024        
 

KAPIL 
GUPTA

Digitally signed 
by KAPIL GUPTA 
Date: 
2024.04.26 
22:15:39 +05'30'
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Balance Sheet 
(All amounts in INR unless otherwise stated)  

INR (‘000) Note 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

Assets    

Current Assets    

Deferred tax assets (net) 5 1,393 321 

Income tax assets 6 16,309 15,381 

Financial assets    

(i) Investments 7 561,030 539,475 

(ii) Trade receivables 8 4,316 17,492 

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents  9 30,420 21,115 

(iv) Other financial assets 10 -  4 

Other current assets 11 11,672 23,839 

Total current assets  625,140 617,627 

    

Total assets  625,140 617,627 

    

Liabilities and Equity    

    

Equity    

Equity share capital 12 412,647 412,647 

Other equity 13 189,768 167,262 

Total equity  602,415 579,909 
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(All amounts in INR unless otherwise stated)  

INR (‘000) Note 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

Liabilities    

Current Liabilities    

Financial liabilities    

(i) Trade payables 14   

(a) Total outstanding dues micro enterprises and small enterprises  65 1 

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises other than (i) (a) above 

 16,925 31,659 

(ii) Other financial liabilities 15 125 144 

Current tax liabilities 16 4,320 3,220 

Other current liabilities 17 1,290 2,694 

Total current liabilities  22,725 37,718 

    

Total equity and liabilities  625,140 617,627 

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date 

For Price Waterhouse LLP 

Chartered Accountants  

Firm Registration Number: 301112E/E300264 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

   

   

   

Kapil Gupta 

 
Partner 

Membership No: 127417 

Place: Mumbai  

Date: April 26, 2024 

Samir Sawhney  

Director 

DIN: 09224977 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: April 26, 2024 

 

 
 

 

 

 

   

   

   

 Barkha Hinduja 

Company Secretary 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: April 26, 2024 

 

  

Abhimanyu Diwan

Director

DIN: 10046685 

Place: Mumbai

Date: April 26, 2024

ABHIMAN
YU DIWAN

Digitally signed 
by ABHIMANYU 
DIWAN 
Date: 2024.04.26 
18:19:40 +05'30'

BARKHA 
DEEPAK 
HINDUJA

Digitally signed by 
BARKHA DEEPAK 
HINDUJA 
Date: 2024.04.26 
18:21:20 +05'30'

SAMIR 
SAWHN
EY

Digitally signed 
by SAMIR 
SAWHNEY 
Date: 2024.04.26 
19:44:04 +05'30'

KAPIL 
GUPT
A

Digitally signed 
by KAPIL GUPTA 
Date: 2024.04.26 
22:17:22 +05'30'
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Statement of Profit and Loss 
(All amounts in INR unless otherwise stated) 

INR (‘000) Note 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Income    

Revenue from operations 18 12,322 40,677 

Other income 19 44,942 33,077 

Total income  57,264 73,754 

    

Expenses    

Employee benefits expenses 20 1,200 2,455 

Finance costs 21 125 144 

Other expenses 22 30,185 64,664 

Total expenses  31,510 67,263 

    

Profit before tax  25,754 6,491 

    

Tax expense / (benefit) 23   

Deferred tax expense / (benefit)  3,248 (1,563) 

Total tax expense   3,248 (1,563) 

    

Total profit and comprehensive income for the year  22,506 8,054 

    

Earnings per equity share 24   

Basic & Diluted (INR)  0.55 0.20 

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date 

For Price Waterhouse LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Number: 301112E/E300264 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

   

   

   

Kapil Gupta 

 
Partner 

Membership No.: 127417 

Place: Mumbai  

Date: April 26, 2024 

Samir Sawhney  

Director 

DIN: 09224977 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: April 26, 2024 

 

 
 

 

 

 

   

   

   

 Barkha Hinduja 

Company Secretary 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: April 26, 2024 

 

 

Abhimanyu Diwan

Director

DIN: 10046685 

Place: Mumbai

Date: April 26, 2024

ABHIMA
NYU 
DIWAN

Digitally signed by 
ABHIMANYU DIWAN 
Date: 2024.04.26 
18:22:35 +05'30'

BARKHA 
DEEPAK 
HINDUJA

Digitally signed by 
BARKHA DEEPAK 
HINDUJA 
Date: 2024.04.26 
18:23:14 +05'30'

SAMIR 
SAWH
NEY

Digitally signed 
by SAMIR 
SAWHNEY 
Date: 
2024.04.26 
19:44:36 +05'30'

KAPIL 
GUPT
A

Digitally 
signed by 
KAPIL GUPTA 
Date: 
2024.04.26 
22:19:31 
+05'30'
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Statement of Cash Flow 
(All amounts in INR unless otherwise stated)  

INR (‘000) Note 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Cash Flow from operating activities    

    

Profit before tax  25,754 6,491 

    

Adjustment    

Net unrealised gains on change in fair value of investments 19 (37,173) (31,131) 

Net realised loss on disposal of fair value of investments 19 1,197 3,331 

Foreign exchange losses 19 55 276 

Dividend income 19 (9,021) (1,542) 

Interest on income tax refund 19 -  (29) 

Operating loss before working capital changes  (19,188) (22,604) 

    

Working capital changes    

Increase in trade payables 14 (14,722) (16,104) 

Decrease in other financial liabilities 15 (22) (4,850) 

Increase in other current liabilities 17 (1,404) (1,111) 

Decrease/ (Increase) in trade receivables 8 13,176 (17,492) 

Decrease in other financial assets 10 4 3 

Increase / (Decrease) in other current assets 11 12,169 (23,563) 

Increase in other non-current assets 7 -  20,522 

Cash used in operations  (9,987) (65,199) 

    

Income tax paid (net of refunds)  (3,247) (1,293) 

    

Net cash flows used in operating activities  (13,234) (66,492) 
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(All amounts in INR unless otherwise stated)  

INR (‘000) Note 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Cash Flow from Investing Activities    

Proceeds on disposal of investments  22,539 40,000 

Net cash flows generated from investing activities  22,539 40,000 

    

Net cash flows in financing activities  - - 

    

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  9,305 (26,492) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  21,115 47,607 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 30,420 21,115 

    

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the balance sheet    

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 9 30,420 21,115 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the year end  30,420 21,115 

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of the financial statements. 

Notes: 

1.The above Statement of Cash flow has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in Ind AS 7 - 'Cash Flow Statements'. 

2.Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1. Company Overview
The Company is incorporated and domiciled in India. The principal activity of the Company is to provide asset/ portfolio
management services to SBI Macquarie Infrastructure Trust (“SMIT”) (a Venture Capital Fund) and providing non-binding
investment advisory services to Macquarie SBI Infrastructure Management Pte. Limited (“MSIMPL”), a company incorporated in
Singapore, under the Services Agreement entered into with MSIMPL. The Company is not a Core Investment Company.

2. Summary of Material Accounting Policies and Other Accounting Policies
2.1 Material Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis for Preparation of Financial Statements:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Given the current term of SMIT has ended on 19 April 2023, during the year the Company intimated to SEBI and investors of SMIT
and continues to make all reasonable endeavours to realise the remaining assets held by SMIT having regards to the current market
conditions and the regulatory environment and thereafter, initiate the winding up activities of SMIT and the Company. Consequently,
the Directors have determined that the going concern basis of preparation is no longer appropriate. Management has assessed that
all the assets and liabilities are current and their carrying value approximates the realisable value at balance sheet date and are thus
not comparable to the comparative reporting period. These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board
of Directors on April 26, 2024.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires use of certain critical accounting estimates and
assumptions. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are material to the
financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Amendments to existing Ind AS:

The following amended standards are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

- Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements

- Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

- Ind AS 12, Income Taxes

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to materially
affect the current or future periods. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS
12 as the Company’s accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory treatment.

(b) Currency Translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates (the "functional currency").

(ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions in a currency other than the functional currency (“foreign currency”) are translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Currency translation differences resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the closing rates at the
balance sheet date are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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Non-monetary items measured at fair values in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair 
values are determined. 

(c) Revenue recognition 

(i) Management fees 

Management fee income is recognised (net of GST and rebate), on an accrual basis and in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the Management Agreement that the Company has entered into with SBI Macquarie Infrastructure Trust (“SMIT” or 
“Fund”). Management fees are billed on a quarterly basis and are computed as follows: 

- The term of SMIT was extendable by 2 terms of 2 years each subject to relevant approvals. On April 5, 2019, the IPRC of SMIT 
approved an extension to the life of SMIT for another 2 years until April 19, 2021 and it was further agreed that the management 
fees charged by the Company to SMIT would be 0.7% for the financial year 2020 and 0% thereafter. 

- On February 25, 2021, the IPRC of SMIT and MSIF approved the extension of the First Extension Termination date by a further 
period of two years from 19 April 2021 to 19 April 2023 at nil management fees. 

 

(ii) Service fees 

Service fee relates to investment management support services provided by the Company to MSIMPL and is paid in accordance 
with the Services Agreement entered on 29 December 2009 between the Company and MSIMPL, a company incorporated in 
Singapore.  The fee is charged by the Company on a cost plus mark-up basis. Revenue from services is recognised on rendering of 
services at cost plus mark-up basis in accordance with contractual arrangements with MSIMPL, when no material uncertainty exists 
regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from rendering these services. 

(iii) Recovery of other expenses 

Recovery of expenses from related parties is recognised as a reduction to expenses at terms agreed between the Company and the 
related entities. 

(iv)Other income 

Export entitlements from Government authorities are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss account when there is a 
reasonable certainty of the receipt. 

(d) Financial Assets 

The accounting for financial assets under IND AS 109 are as follows: 

(i) Classification and measurement 

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories: 

- Amortised cost;  

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL); and 

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

The classification of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets as well as the 
contractual terms of the cash flows of the financial assets. 

The Company reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes. 

Initial recognition 

At initial recognition, financial assets are measured at its fair value. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred in the statement of 
profit or loss.  

Subsequent measurement 

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") are measured at fair value. The 
portfolio of financial assets is managed and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. Gains and losses arising from changes 
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in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category is presented in the statement of profit or loss within 
“other income” in the year in which they arise. 

Dividend income from the mutual funds is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established. 

- Debt instrument 

Debt instruments of the Company mainly comprises of investment in debt oriented mutual funds. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the debt 
instrument is presented in the statement of profit or loss within “other income” in the year in which they arise.  

(ii) Impairment of assets 

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not 
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which an asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Non-financial assets that 
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. 

(iii) Recognition and derecognition 

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date – the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell 
the asset. 

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been 
transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. 

On disposal of a debt instrument, the difference between the carrying amount and the sale proceeds is recognised in profit or loss. 

(iv)Fair value estimation 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. Investments in unquoted mutual funds are valued based on their respective closing Net Asset 
Values. 

(e) Structured entities 

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who 
controls the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant activities are directed by 
means of contractual arrangements. A structured entity often has some or all of the following features or attributes: (a) restricted 
activities; (b) a narrow and well defined objective, such as to provide investment opportunities for investors by passing on risks and 
rewards associated with the assets of the structured entity to investors; (c) insufficient equity to permit the structured entity to 
finance its activities without subordinated financial support; and (d) financing in the form of multiple contractually linked instruments 
to investors that create concentrations of credit or other risks. 

(i) Interests in funds managed by the Company 

The Company has determined that the investment fund (SMIT) it manages is a structure entity as a result of the power conveyed 
through its investment management agreement with SMIT which permits the Company to participate in its investing and operating 
decisions.  The Company’s interest in SMIT is the management fee that was earned from the fund until April 19, 2020. 

(f) Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at 
call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an immaterial risk of changes in value. 

(g) Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business and reflect the 
Company’s unconditional right to consideration. 

(h) Share capital 

Shares issued by the Company are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown 
in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds of the issue of shares. 

(i) Trade and other payables 
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Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less, if not, they are presented as 
non-current liabilities. Trade and other payables are initially recognised at their fair value, and subsequently carried at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method. 

(j) Income Tax 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income (OCI). 

(i) Current tax 

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting 
period in India. The Company's directors periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which 
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to 
be paid to the tax authorities. 

Current tax [including Minimum Alternate Tax] is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for the 
year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

Minimum Alternate tax (“MAT”) is paid in accordance with tax laws, which give rise to future economic benefits in the form of 
adjustment of future income tax liability. MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 
evidence that the company will pay normal tax in the specified period and when it is probable that the future economic benefit 
associated with it will flow to the company and the asset can be measured reliably. 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised 
amounts, and it intends to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. 

(ii) Deferred tax 

Deferred income tax is recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts in the financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or 
liability that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction. 

A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised. 

Deferred income tax is measured: 

- at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability 
is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date; and  

- based on the tax consequence that will follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the balance sheet date, to 
recover or settle the carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities. 

Current and deferred income taxes are recognised as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent 
that the tax arises from a transaction which is recognised directly in equity 

(k) Dividend to Company’s shareholders 

Dividends to the Company’s shareholders are recognised when the dividends are approved for payment. A provision for dividend is 
made by the Company for the amount of any dividend declared and appropriately authorised on or before the end of the reporting 
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period. 

(l) Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal and a constructive obligation as a result of a past event, for which it is 
probable that a cash outflow will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Changes in the estimated timing or amount of the expenditure or discount rate are recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
when the changes arise. 
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Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

(m) Offsetting Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only if there is a 
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or counterparty. 

2.2 Other Accounting Policies 
(a) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for 
the period by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted 
average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

(b) Rounding of amounts 

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest thousands as per the requirement 
of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated. 

(c) Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Management and Board of 
Directors. 

The board of directors of the Company assesses the financial performance and position of the Company, at each board meeting. 
Refer to Note 30 for segment information disclosure. 

3. Critical Accounting Estimates, Assumption and Judgements 
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IND AS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It 
also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the accounting estimates. Estimates, assumptions and 
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of 
future events. Management believes the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are reasonable. Actual results 
in the future, however, may differ from those reported. 

Accrual for performance incentive to employees included in resource costs and service fee 

The accrual for performance incentive included within 'Resource costs' (refer to Note 22) and service fees charged to MSIMPL are 
currently based on estimates by, respectively, the resource and service providers. These accruals are based on the providers' best 
estimates as at the date of the balance sheet. The actual results may differ materially when the amount of performance incentive is 
finalised.  

4. Resource Costs 
Resource fee represents costs relating to resource services and personnel seconded to the Company. As per the terms of the 
Shared Facilities Agreement between the Company and Macquarie Infrastructure and Real Assets (India) Private Limited (MIRAIPL) 
and the Resources Agreement between the Company and State Bank of India (SBI), staff are seconded by MIRAIPL and SBI to the 
Company for which the Company reimburses MIRAIPL and SBI for all payments made by MIRAIPL and SBI to such staff. 

In view of the above, the Company does not have any transactions to which Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits are applicable to 
employees seconded by MIRAIPL and SBI. 
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5. Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 
The balance comprises temporary difference attributable to: 

INR (‘000) 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (19,413) (16,165) 

Set-off of MAT credit entitlement 20,806 16,846 

Net deferred tax assets 1,393 321 

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of MAT credit entitlement on account of fair value gains of unquoted 
investments in mutual funds. The Company has concluded that the deferred tax assets will be recoverable upon the realisation of 
the unquoted investments. 

Movement in net deferred tax assets/ (liability) 

INR (‘000) 

Financial 
assets at fair 

value 
 through 

profit or loss 
MAT credit 
entitlement Total 

Balance at April 01, 2022 (17,727) 13,288 (4,439) 

Movement during the year 1,562 3,198 (4,760) 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 (16,615) 16,486 321 

Movement during the year (3,248) 4,320 1,072 

Balance as at March 31, 2024 (19,413) 20,806 1,393 

The Company has recognised deferred tax liabilities in respect of temporary differences which arose on the fair value gains of 
unquoted investments in mutual funds. 

6. Income Tax Assets 

INR (‘000)   
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

Current assets   

Advance tax/ tax deducted at source  
[Net of provision for tax of INR 109,183 (2023: INR 181,101)] 

16,309 15,381 

Total   16,309 15,381 
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7. Investments 

 
As at 

March 31, 2024 
As at 

March 31, 2023 

INR (‘000) Units Fair Value 
INR (‘000) 

Units Fair Value 
INR (‘000) 

Investments in mutual funds at FVTPL     

Unquoted     

SBI Magnum Gilt Fund – Direct Plan – Growth  4,055,489 256,030  4,055,489   234,267  

SBI Liquid Fund – Direct Plan - Daily Dividend 120,920 138,338  114,162   129,795  

HSBC Gilt Fund – Direct Growth (Formerly known as L&T 
Gilt Fund Direct Plan – Growth) 

588,731 40,292  588,731   37,255  

Nippon India Gilt Securities Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 3,263,992 126,370  3,263,992   116,029  

LIC MF Liquid Fund – Direct Plan – Daily Dividend (refer to 
Note 19) 

-  -   21,831   22,129  

Total (Unquoted Mutual Funds)  561,030   539,475  

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 8,029,132 561,030 8,044,205 539,475 

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of 
investments 

- - - - 

8. Trade Receivables 

INR (‘000) 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured   

- Service fees receivable from MSIMPL 4,316 17,492 

Total receivables 4,316 17,492 

Break-up of security details   

Trade receivables considered good – Unsecured 4,316  17,492 

Total trade receivables 4,316 17,492 

As at the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 the carrying value of trade receivables approximated to their fair values due 
to short term maturity. 
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Trade Receivables ageing schedule 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INR (‘000)   
As at  

March 31, 2024 

   Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment  
Total 

 Unbilled Not 
due 

Less than 
6 months 

6 months - 
1 year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years 

Undisputed trade receivables         

considered good - - 4,316 -   -    -    -  4,316 

which will have significant 
increase in credit risk 

- - -   -    -    -    -    - 

Disputed trade receivables         

considered good - - -   -    -    -    -    - 

which will have significant 
increase in credit risk 

- - -   -    -    -    -    - 

credit impaired - - -   -    -    -    -    - 

Total - - 4,316 - - - - 4,316 
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9. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

INR (‘000) 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

Balances with banks in current account 30,420 21,115 

Total 30,420 21,115 

As at the financial years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximated their fair 
values due to short term maturity. 
  

INR (‘000)   
As at  

March 31, 2023 

   Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment  
Total 

 Unbilled Not 
due 

Less than 
6 months 

6 months - 
1 year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years 

Undisputed trade receivables         

considered good - - 17,492 -   -    -    -  17,492 

which will have significant 
increase in credit risk 

- - -   -    -    -    -    - 

Disputed trade receivables         

considered good - - -   -    -    -    -    - 

which will have significant 
increase in credit risk 

- - -   -    -    -    -    - 

credit impaired - - -   -    -    -    -    - 

Total - - 17,492 - - - - 17,492 
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10. Other Financial Assets 

INR (‘000) 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

Receivable from SMIT -  4 

Total -  4 

11. Other Current Assets 

INR (‘000) 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

Balance with Goods and Service Tax authorities 11,397 23,565 

Prepaid expenses 275 274 

Total 11,672 23,839 

12. Equity Share Capital 

INR (‘000) 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

Authorised   

45,500,000 (2023: 45,500,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each 455,000 455,000 

   

Issued, subscribed and paid up   

41,264,722 (2023: 41,264,722) equity shares of Rs 10 each (fully paid up)  412,647  412,647 

1. Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year: 

 No. of shares 
Amount 

INR (‘000) 

Equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up   

As at April 01, 2022  41,264,722 412,647 

Add/(less): Movement during the year - - 

As at March 31, 2023 41,264,722 412,647 

Add/(less): Movement during the year - - 

As at March 31, 2024 41,264,722 412,647 

2. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares 

The Company has one class of shares i.e. Equity Shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for 
one vote per share held. The holders of equity shares are also entitled to receive dividend, if any, as may be recommended by the 
Board of Directors of the Company subject to approval by the shareholders at a General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend, 
and such dividend shall be paid on each share on the basis of its paid-up value. In the event of liquidation, the holders of equity 
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shares shall be eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to 
their respective shareholding. 

3. Shares held by holding company 

 
As at 

March 31, 2024 
As at 

March 31, 2023 

INR (‘000) 
Number of 

Shares 
Amount 

INR (‘000) 
Number of 

shares 
Amount 

INR (‘000) 

Macquarie India Infrastructure Management Holdings Pte 
Limited, the Holding company 

21,045,078 210,451 21,045,078 210,451 

4. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company 

 
As at 

March 31, 2024 
As at 

March 31, 2023 

INR (‘000)
Number of 

Shares 
% Holding Number of 

shares 
% Holding 

Macquarie India Infrastructure Management Holdings Pte 
Limited, the Holding company 

21,045,078 51% 21,045,078 51% 

State Bank of India 18,569,186 45% 18,569,186 45% 

5. Details of shareholding of promoters (as defined under Section 2(69) of Companies Act, 2013) 

 
As at 

March 31, 2024 
As at 

March 31, 2023 

INR (‘000)

Number of 
Shares 

% of total 
number of 

shares 

% of change 
during the 

year 

Number of 
Shares 

% of total 
number of 

shares 

% of change 
during the 

year 

Macquarie India 
Infrastructure Management 
Holdings Pte Limited, the 
Holding company 

21,045,078 51% 0% 21,045,078 51% 0% 

State Bank of India 18,569,186 45% 0% 18,569,186 45% 0% 

International Finance 
Corporation 

1,650,458 4% 0% 1,650,458 4% 0% 

6. Changes in equity for current reporting year 

INR (‘000)    
As at  

March 31, 2024 

Balance at the beginning 
of the current reporting 

year 

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due to 

prior year errors 

Restated balance at the 
beginning of the current 

reporting year 

Changes in equity 
share capital during the 

current year 

Balance at the end of 
the current reporting 

year 

412,647  -  412,647   -  412,647 
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7. Changes in equity for previous reporting year 

INR (‘000)    
As at  

March 31, 2023 

Balance at the beginning  
of the previous reporting 

year 

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due to 

prior year errors 

Restated balance at the 
beginning of the previous 

reporting year 

Changes in equity 
share capital during 

the previous year 

Balance at the end of 
the previous reporting 

year 

412,647  -  412,647   -  412,647 

13. Reserves and Surplus 

INR (‘000) 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

General Reserve 14,344 14,344 

Retained earnings 175,424 152,918 

Total 189,768 167,262 

Notes: 

1. Nature and purpose of reserves other than Retained earnings 

General Reserve 
As per the Companies Act requirement, the Company was required to transfer part of the profits to General Reserve in the years 
when dividend was declared. 

2. Changes in other equity for the current reporting year 

 Reserve and Surplus  

 
INR (‘000) 

General 
Reserves 

Retained 
Earnings 

Total 

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 14,344  152,918 167,262 

Changes in accounting policy or prior year errors  -   -   -  

Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting year 14,344  152,918 167,262 

Total comprehensive income for the year - 22,506 22,506 

Dividends  -   -   -  

Transfer to retained earnings  - - - 

Balance at the end of the reporting year 14,344 175,424 189,768 
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3. Changes in other equity for the previous reporting year 

 Reserve and Surplus  

 
INR (‘000) 

General 
Reserves 

Retained 
Earnings 

Total 

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year  14,344 144,864 159,208 

Changes in accounting policy or prior year errors  -   -   -  

Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting year  14,344 144,864 159,208 

Total comprehensive income for the year - 8,054 8,054 

Dividends  -   -   -  

Transfer to retained earnings  - - - 

Balance at the end of the reporting year 14,344 152,918 167,262 

14. Trade Payables 

INR (‘000) 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

Trade payables: micro and small enterprises (note 31) 65 1 

Trade payables: creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  4,529 3,677 

Trade payables to related parties (note 28) 12,396 27,982 

Total 16,990 31,660 

As at the financial years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 the carrying value of trade and other payables approximate to their fair 
values due to short term maturity. 

Trade Payables ageing schedule 

INR (‘000)   
As at  

March 31, 2024 

  
 

Unbilled 

 
 

Not due 

Outstanding for following periods from due date   

Less than 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 
years 

More than 
3 years 

Total 

Undisputed trade payables        

   Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - 65   -    -    -  65 

   Others 3,190 - 13,735   -    -    -  16,925 

Disputed trade payables        

   Micro enterprises and small enterprises - -   -    -    -    -    - 

   Others - -   -    -    -    -    - 

Total 3,190 - 13,800 - - - 16,990 
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15. Other Financial Liabilities 

INR (‘000) 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

Finance costs payable 125 144 

Total 125 144 

16. Current Tax Liabilities 

INR (‘000) 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 3,220 355 

Movement during the year 1,100 2,865 

Balance at the end of the reporting year 4,320 3,220 

Current tax liabilities relate to MAT liability on account of fair value gains of unquoted investments in mutual funds. The Company 
has recognised a corresponding deferred tax asset in respect of this MAT credit entitlement. Refer to Note 5 for net deferred tax 
assets. 

17. Other Current Liabilities 

INR (‘000) 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

Advance from SMIT 29 - 

Tax deducted at source 1,261 2,694 

Total 1,290 2,694 

INR (‘000)   
As at  

March 31, 2023 

  
 

Unbilled 

 
 

Not due 

Outstanding for following periods from due date   

Less than 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 
years 

More than 
3 years 

Total 

Undisputed trade payables        

   Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - 1    -    -    -  1  

   Others 2,733 - 28,926    -    -    -  31,659 

Disputed trade payables        

   Micro enterprises and small enterprises - -   -    -    -    -    - 

   Others - -   -    -    -    -    - 

Total 2,733 - 28,927 - - - 31,660 
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18. Revenue from Operations 

INR (‘000) 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2024 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2023 

Revenue from contracts with customers   

Service fees 12,322 40,677 

Total 12,322 40,677 

19. Other Income 

INR (‘000) 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2024 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2023 

Unrealised net fair value gains on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or 
loss 

37,173 31,131 

Realised net fair value loss on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 
(refer to (a) below) 

(1,197) (3,331) 

Interest on income tax refund - 29 

Dividend income 9,021 1,542 

Interest income on fixed deposits - - 

Net foreign exchange differences (55) (276) 

Income from sale of service exports incentive scrips - 3,982 

Total 44,942 33,077 

(a) On July 17, 2023, the Company redeemed its investment in LIC Liquid Fund costing INR 6,669 for INR 5,472. An amount of 
INR 1,197 that was previously being accounted as unrealised fair value losses were reclassified to realised losses. 

20. Employee Benefits Expenses 

INR (‘000) 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2024 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2023 

Salaries and allowances 1,200 2,455 

Total 1,200 2,455 
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21. Finance Costs 

INR (‘000) 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2024 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2023 

Interest on shortfall of advance tax 125 144 

Total 125 144 

22. Other Expenses 

INR (‘000) 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2024 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2023 

Resource costs and other costs (Refer Note 4) 24,396 60,309 

Rates and taxes - 68 

Travelling and conveyance - - 

Payment to auditors   

Statutory Audit Fees 921 949 

Other Fees 30 30 

Reimbursement of Expenses 1 - 

Legal, professional and consultancy fees 3,072 1,460 

Trustee fees 700 700 

Insurance 1,098 1101 

Telephone and communication charges 7 13 

Miscellaneous expenses 89 83 

 30,314 64,713 

Less: Recovery of expenses from related parties (129) (49) 

Total 30,185 64,664 

   

23. Tax (Benefit) / Expense 
(a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss 

INR (‘000) 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2024 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2023 

Tax (benefits) / expenses   

Deferred tax (benefit) / expense 3,248 (1,563) 
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INR (‘000) 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2024 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2023 

Total tax (benefits) / expenses 3,248 (1,563) 

(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

INR (‘000) 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2024 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2023s 

Profit / (Loss) before tax 25,754 6,491 

Company’s domestic tax rate (27.82% (2023: 27.82%)) 27.82% 27.82% 

Tax at the domestic tax rate - - 

Tax effect on:

Deferred tax impact on fair valuation of investments 3,248 (1,563) 

Total income tax (benefits) / expenses 3,248 (1,563) 

24. Earnings per share
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be 
issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares.  

INR (‘000) 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2024 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2023 

Net profit / (loss) attributable to equity shareholders (A) 22,506 8,054 

Basic and diluted - weighted average number of equity shares (in thousands) outstanding 
(B)

41,265 41,265 

Earnings / (Loss) per equity share – Basic and Diluted EPS (INR) (A/B) 0.55 0.20 

25. Contingent Liabilities
During the year ended March 2024, the Company received a demand order from GST Department amounting to INR 26  

 for the period FY 2017-18 to FY 2019-20, against which company has filed an appeal before the GST Appellate 
Authority and a pre deposit payment (10% of disputed tax) of INR 26   was paid.  

The Company did not have any contingent liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2023. 
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26. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expense 
For FY 2023-24, the Company was not required to incur CSR expenditure as the Company doesn’t meet the prescribed limits of net 
profits / turnover / net worth for the immediately preceding three financial years i.e. FYE 31.03.2021, FYE 31.03.2022 and FYE 
31.03.2023. 

27. Interests in Unconsolidated Structured Entities 
The Company has interests in a structured entity, namely SMIT, as a result of its principal activity, the management of assets on 
behalf of SMIT. 

The structured entity is financed by committed capital investment by investors which is subsequently drawn down to fund 
investments and meet expenses. 

Until April 19, 2020, the Company earned a management fee from the structured entity which was typically based on a percentage 
of invested capital.  The business activity of the structured entity is the management of assets in order to maximise investment 
returns from capital appreciation and/or investment income. 

The amount of assets under management (AUM) by the structured entity is expected to be approximately INR 4,038,306 as at 
March 31, 2024 (2023: INR 3,870,191). 

28. Related Party Disclosures 
(a) Relationships (during the year) 

(i) Ultimate holding Company: 
Macquarie Group Limited* 

(ii) Holding Company: 
Macquarie India Infrastructure Management Holdings Pte Limited (“MIIMHPL”) – Singapore 

(iii) Fellow Subsidiary: 
Macquarie Infrastructure and Real Assets (India) Private Limited (“MIRAIPL”) 
Macquarie SBI Infrastructure Management Pte Limited (“MSIMPL”) 
SBI Macquarie Infrastructure Trustee Private Limited (“SMITPL”) 

(iv) Shareholder having significant influence: 
State Bank of India (“SBI”) 

(v) Venture Capital Fund managed by the Company: 
SBI Macquarie Infrastructure Trust (“SMIT”) 

(vi) Directors: 
Mr. Deep Gupta** 
Mr. Sandeep Kumar Mishra* (ceased 22 January 2023)  
Mr. Rajay Kumar Sinha* (resigned 6 July 2023) 
Mr. Tejinder Singh* (resigned 1 January 2023) 
Ms. Victoria Hilda Rigby Delmon* (resigned 18 April 2023) 
Mr. Abhimanyu Diwan* 
Mr. Sankaranarayanan Jayasankar* (ceased 22 January 2023) 
Mr. Satyendra Kumar Singh 
Mr. Samir Sawhney 
 
*  No transactions during the year.  
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(b) Transactions during the year: 

INR (‘000) Year  
 Holding 

Company  
 Fellow 

Subsidiary  

Shareholder 
having 

significant 
influence  

 Venture 
Capital 

Fund  

 Key 
Management 

Personnel  

Resource costs and other costs  
- MIRAIPL 

 
2024 
2023 

 
- 
- 

 
19,793 
55,925 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

- SBI 2024 
2023 

- 
- 

- 
- 

4,603 
4,384 

- 
- 

- 
- 

Reimbursement received towards 
insurance costs  

- SMIT 

 
 

2024 
2023 

 
 

- 
- 

 
 

- 
- 

  
 

- 
- 

 
 

395 
395 

 
 

- 
- 

- SMITL 2024 
2023 

- 
- 

395 
395 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

Reimbursement received towards 
Deloitte FATCA/CRS costs 

- SMITL 

 
 

2024 
2023 

 
 

- 
- 

 
 

- 
143 

 
 

- 
- 

 
 

- 
- 

 
 

- 
- 

Recovery of expenses 
- SMIT 

 
2024 
2023 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
129 

49 

 
- 
- 

Service Fees 
- MSIMPL 

 
2024 
2023 

 
- 
- 

 
12,322 

 40,677 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

Trustee fees paid 
- SMITL 

 
2024 
2023 

 
- 
- 

 
700 
700 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

(c) Balances at the end of the year: 

INR (‘000) Year  
 Holding 

Company  
 Fellow 

Subsidiary  

Shareholder 
having 

significant 
influence  

 Venture 
Capital 

Fund  

 Key 
Management 

Personnel  

Trade Payables  
- MIRAIPL 

 
2024 
2023 

 
- 
- 

 
11,086 
27,479 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

- SBI 2024 
2023 

- 
- 

- 
- 

1,152 
345 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- SMITL 2024 
2023 

- 
- 

158 
158 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- SMIT 2024 
2023 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

29 
- 

- 
- 
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INR (‘000) Year  
 Holding 

Company  
 Fellow 

Subsidiary  

Shareholder 
having 

significant 
influence  

 Venture 
Capital 

Fund  

 Key 
Management 

Personnel  

Trade Receivables 
- MSIMPL 

 
2024 
2023 

 
- 
- 

 
4,316 

17,492 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

Other Financial Assets 
- SMIT 

 
2024 
2023 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
4 

 
- 
- 

Balance in current accounts 
- SBI* 

 
2024 
2023 

 
 - 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
30,420 
21,115 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

* The Company has day to day transactions with SBI, being the bank, used for payments and receipts in the normal course of 
business which have not been considered for the purpose of reporting under this note. 

29. Segment Information 
An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue and incur 
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company's other components, and for which 
discrete financial information is available. 

All operating segments' results are regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors, which have been identified by the Management for 
which discrete financial information is available. The Finance Head regularly reviews the performance reports and make decisions 
about allocation of resources. 

The Company has identified the following reportable geographical segments, performance reports of which is regularly reviewed by 
the Board of Directors. 

(i) Within India 

(ii) Outside India 

(a) Segment revenue 

The Company is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue broken down by location is shown in the table below: 

INR (‘000) 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2024 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2023 

Outside India   

Service fees 12,322 40,677 

   

Total segment revenue 12,322 40,677 
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(b) Information about major customers 

The details of aggregate of revenue from transactions with more than one single external customer or counterparty amounting to 
10% or more of the company's total revenue are as below:- 

INR (‘000) 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2024 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2023 

Service fees 12,322 40,677 

Total revenue 12,322 40,677 

(c) Segment assets & liabilities 

Segment assets and liabilities are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These assets and liabilities are 
allocated based on the geographical location. 

 
For the year ended  

March 31, 2024 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

INR (‘000) Within India Outside India Within India Outside India 

Income tax assets 16,309 - 15,381 - 

Other non-current assets - - - - 

Investments 561,030 - 539,475 - 

Trade receivables - 4,316 - 17,492 

Cash and cash equivalents  30,420 - 21,115 - 

Other financial assets - - 4 - 

Other current assets 11,672 - 23,839 - 

Total segment assets 619,431 4,316 599,814 17,492 

     

Deferred tax liabilities - - - - 

Trade payables: micro and small enterprises (note 31) 65 - 1 - 

Trade payables: creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

4,111 418 3,537 140 

Trade payables to related parties (note 28) 12,396 - 27,987  

Other financial liabilities 125 - 144 - 

Current tax liabilities 4,320 - 3,220 - 

Other current liabilities 1,290 - 2,694 - 

Total segment liabilities 22,307 418 37,578 140 
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30. Financial Risk Management 
Financial risk factors 

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk), 
credit risk and liquidity risk. 

The Board of Directors is responsible for setting the objectives and underlying principles of financial risk management for the 
Company. 

The Company’s management measures actual exposures against the limits set and prepares regular reports for the review of the 
management team and the Board of Directors. 

(a) Market Risk 

Market risk is the exposure to adverse changes in the financial position of the Company as a result of changes in market prices or 
volatility. The Company is exposed to currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk. 

(i) Currency Risk 

Currency risk arises on financial instruments denominated in a currency other than INR, being the functional currency of the 
Company. The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of service fee income receivable from MSIMPL, administration fees 
payable to the Company's administrator and professional fees payable to Deloitte Tax LLP which are denominated in USD. 

The Company’s net exposure to the currency risk is as follows: 

INR (‘000) 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2024 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2023 

Financial assets    

Trade receivables 4,316 17,492 

   

Financial liabilities   

Trade payables (418) (140) 

Other financial liabilities - - 

   

Net currency exposure 3,898 17,352 

Sensitivity analysis 

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against the US Dollar at March 31 would have affected the 
measurement of financial instruments denominated in USD and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This 
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and 
purchases. 

INR (‘000) 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2024 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2023 

Effect in INR   

USD + 5% Movement 195 868 

USD - 5% Movement (195)  (868) 
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(ii) Price Risk 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to 
financial instrument of its issuer, or factors affecting similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company does not hold 
any quoted investments, thus the Company do not have any exposure to price risk. 

(iii) Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument or its cash flows will fluctuate due to changes in market interest 
rates. 

The Company’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in interest rates. The Company holds 
underlying investments in debt oriented mutual funds whose fair values are subject to changes in interest rates / yields. Cash held 
by the Company is not normally expected to be placed for longer than a year and much is invested in current accounts, with 
immaterial interest rate risk. 

The sensitivity of the fair value of the investments are subject to changes to interest rates / yields is: 

Sensitivity analysis 

 +100 Basis Point  -100 Basis Point  

 
 
 
INR (‘000) 

For the year 
ended  

March 31, 
2024 

For the year 
ended  

March 31, 
2023 

For the year 
ended  

March 31, 
2024 

For the year 
ended  

March 31, 
2023 

SBI Magnum Gilt Fund Direct Growth 1,960  1,787  (1,960)  (1,787) 

HSBC Gilt Fund – Direct Growth (Formerly known as L&T 
Gilt Fund Direct Plan – Growth) 

288  266  (288)  (266) 

Nippon India Gilt Securities Fund - Direct Plan - Growth  836  769  (836)  (769) 

SBI Liquid Fund Direct Daily Dividend 1,110  879 (1,110)  (879) 

LIC MF Liquid Fund - Direct - Dividend Plan -  75  -  (75) 

Total 4,194  3,776  (4,194)  (3,776) 

Tax Impact 436  393  (436)  (393) 

Net of Tax 3,758  3,383  (3,758)  (3,383) 

(b) Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. At the 
balance sheet date, assets held by the Company for managing liquidity risk included trade and other receivables and cash and cash 
equivalents as disclosed in Note 10 and 11 respectively. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity 
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet its operational needs. 

The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the 
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. 

INR (‘000) 
Carrying 
amount Total 

Up to 1 
month 1-3 months 

3 months- 
1 year 1-5 years 

As at March 31, 2024       

       

Financial liabilities       
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INR (‘000) 
Carrying 
amount Total 

Up to 1 
month 1-3 months 

3 months- 
1 year 1-5 years 

Trade payables 16,990 16,990 - 16,714 276  -  

Other financial liabilities 125 125 125 - -  -  

       

Carrying Amount 17,115 17,115 16,697 16,714 276  -  

 

INR (‘000) 
Carrying 
amount Total 

Up to 1 
month 1-3 months 

3 months- 
1 year 1-5 years 

As at March 31, 2023       

       

Financial liabilities       

Trade payables 31,660 31,660 27,983 140 3,537 - 

Other financial liabilities 144 144 144 - - - 

       

Carrying Amount 31,804 31,804 28,127 140 3,537 - 

(c) Credit Risk 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. 
The major classes of financial assets of the Company, exposed to credit risk, are cash and bank deposits, trade and other 
receivables and investments in debt oriented mutual funds. The Company adopts the policy of dealing with financial institutions and 
counterparties with high credit ratings. The credit ratings of these financial institutions and counterparties are monitored on a regular 
basis. 

All trade receivables are reviewed on a regular basis. The Company measures credit risk and expected credit losses using 
probability of default, exposure at default and loss given default. Management consider both historical analysis and forward looking 
information in determining any expected credit loss. Management consider the probability of default to be close to zero as the 
counterparties have a strong capacity to meet their contractual obligations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been 
recognised based on 12 month expected credit losses as any impairment would be wholly insignificant to the Company. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial assets is the carrying amount of that class of financial instruments 
presented on the balance sheet. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents are invested primarily in current accounts with reputable financial institutions with high 
credit ratings assigned by international credit agencies. 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

The Company’s receivables are reviewed on a regular basis. Historical experience of receivables' collections by the Company is 
supported by no default and hence credit risk is perceived to be low. 

As at March 31, 2024 and 2023, the financial assets of the Company are neither past due nor impaired. 

The gross carrying amounts of the following financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure: 
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INR (‘000) 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

Investments 561,030 539,475 

Trade receivables 4,316 17,492 

Cash and cash equivalents  30,420 21,115 

Other financial assets - 4 

Total 595,766 578,086 

(d) Capital Risk Management 

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure that the Company is adequately capitalised and to maintain an 
optimal capital structure by issuing additional equity and debt instruments when necessary. The management monitors its capital 
based on total equity. 

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. 

The Company did not pay any dividends during the current financial year (2023: INR nil). 

(e) Fair Value Measurements 

The Company classifies financial assets using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the 
measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels: 

a) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1); 

b) Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as 
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2); and 

c) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3). 

A. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities: 

 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023  

 
INR (‘000) 

FVTPL Amortised 
cost 

FVTPL Amortised 
cost 

Financial Assets     

Investments 561,030  539,475  

Trade receivables - 4,316 - 17,492 

Cash and cash equivalents  - 30,420 - 21,115 

Other financial assets - - - 4 

     

Total financial assets 561,030 34,736 539,475 38,611 

     

Current Liabilities     

Financial liabilities     

Trade payables - 16,900 - 31,660 
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As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023  

Other financial liabilities - 125 - 144 

     

Total financial liabilities - 17,115 - 31,804 

B. Fair value: 

The following table represents financial instruments measured at fair value and classified by level of fair value measurement 
hierarchy as follows: 

 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

INR (‘000) Level 2 Total Level 2 Total 

Financial Assets     

Investments 561,030 561,030 539,475 539,475 

     

Total financial assets 561,030 561,030 539,475 539,475 

The carrying amount of trade receivables, trade payables and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair 
values, due to their short-term nature. 

There have been no transfers of financial assets between the three levels of fair value hierarchy during the year. The Company’s 
policy is to recognise transfer into and out of fair value hierarchy level as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that 
caused the transfer. 

Investment in mutual funds classified as fair value through profit or loss, are carried at fair value based on their respective closing 
net asset value. 

31. Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 
The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 
('MSMED Act'). The disclosure pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows: - 

INR (‘000) 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

 (Refer to Note 14) 

1. Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining 
unpaid as at year end 

65 1 

2. Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at 
year end 

- - 

3. Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the 
appointed day during the year - - 

4. Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under 
the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year - - 
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INR (‘000) 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 

5. Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the 
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year - - 

6. Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments 
already made - - 

7. Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years - - 

32. Financial Ratios 

 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
As at  

March 31, 2023 % Variance 

(i) Current ratio (times)  27.5 16.4 68% 

(ii) Return on Equity (%) 3.7% 1.4% 164% 

(iii) Trade receivables turnover ratio (times) 1.1 4.7 -77% 

(iv) Trade payables turnover ratio (times) 1.2 5.0 -76% 

(v) Net capital turnover ratio (times) - 0.1 -100% 

(vi) Net Profit/(loss) margin (%) 182.6% 19.8% 822% 

(vii) Return on Capital employed (%) 3.6% 1.3% 177% 

(viii) Return on investment (%) 15.0% 9.6% 56% 

The following ratios are not applicable for the Company: 

(i) Debt-Equity ratio  

(ii) Debt Service Coverage ratio  

(iii) Inventory turnover ratio  

(a) Explanation of basis of computation of ratios  

(i) Current ratio  

Total current assets divided by total current liabilities 

(v) Net capital turnover ratio  

Revenue divided by the average equity share capital  

(ii) Return on Equity ratio  

Net profit / (loss) divided by total equity  

(vi) Net profit / (loss) margin 

Net profit / (loss) divided by revenue 

(iii) Trade Receivables turnover ratio  

Revenue divided by the average Trade Receivables  

(vii) Return on Capital employed 

Net profit / (loss) divided by total assets 
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(i) Current ratio  

Total current assets divided by total current liabilities 

(v) Net capital turnover ratio  

Revenue divided by the average equity share capital  

(iv) Trade payables turnover ratio  

Resource costs and trustee fees divided by the average 

 Trade Payables. 

(viii) Return on investment 

Dividends, realised and unrealised investments gains divided 
by investments(xi) Return on investment 

Dividends, realised and unrealised investments gains divided 

by investments 

(b) Reason for variance which exceed 25%   

(i) Current ratio 

The variance in current ratio is mainly due to an increase in the unrealised fair value movements in the current year as compared to 
the previous year. 

(ii) Return on Equity  

The variance in return on equity is mainly due to a change in net profit, which has increased from INR 8,054 in the previous year to 
INR 22,506 in the current year 

(iii) Trade receivables turnover ratio  

The variance in the trade receivables turnover ratio is mainly due to the decrease in the average trade receivables. Average trade 
receivables have decreased due to trade receivables from MSIMPL being lower in the current year. 

(iv) Trade payables turnover ratio  

The variance in the trade payables turnover ratio is mainly due to the increase in the average trade payables. Average trade 
payables have increased due to trade payables as at March 31, 2023 to MIRAIPL being lower than in the current year and previous 
year. 

(v) Net profit margin 

The variance in the net profit  margin is mainly due to a change in net profit, which has increased from INR 8,054 in the previous 
year to a net profit of INR 22,506 in the current year 

(vi)  Return on Capital employed  

The variance in the return on capital employed is mainly due to a change in  mainly due to a change in net profit, which has 
increased from INR 8,054 in the previous year to a net profit of INR 22,506 in the current year 

(vii) Return on investment 

The variance in the return on investment is mainly due to a n increase in the unrealised fair value movements in the current year as 
compared to the previous year. 

33. Previous year figures 
Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, where necessary, to confirm to current year’s classification. 

34. Daily Backup of Books of accounts 
The Company has maintained back-up of the books of accounts and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode on the 
server located in India. Backup is updated on a yearly basis instead of daily basis during the year. 
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35. Audit Trail 
The Company’s administrator uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account that have a feature of recording audit 
trail as required under rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, except that the audit trail record does not contain the pre-
modified values, if any. The Company’s administrators have established and maintained an adequate internal control framework 
and based on its assessment, believes that there is no impact of this on the financial statements as on March 31, 2024. 

36. Additional Regulatory Information required by Schedule III 

 

(i) Details of benami property held 
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder. 

(ii) Borrowing secured against current assets 
The Company did not contract any borrowings from banks and financial institutions, hence this requirement is not applicable. 

(iii) Wilful defaulter 
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 
authority. 

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies 
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956. 

(v) Compliance with number of layers of companies 
The Company is a standalone, hence this requirement is not applicable.  

(vi) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements 
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial 
year. 

(vii) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium 
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the   

Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or  
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries 

 
The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the  

Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
b.    provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries 

(viii) Undisclosed income 
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account. 

(ix) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency 
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year. 

(x) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property 
The Company did not hold any property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during 
the current or previous year. 
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37. Other Regulatory Information

(i) Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the company
The Company did not hold any immovable properties during the current or previous year.

(ii) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

(iii) Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions
The Company did not contract any borrowings from banks and financial institutions, hence this requirement is not applicable.

38. Other Additional Information
There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under section 125 of the Companies Act, 
2013 as at the year end. 



 Strictly confidential 

SBI Macquarie Infrastructure Management Private Limited  69 

 

For Price Waterhouse LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Number: 301112E/E300264 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

   

   

   

Kapil Gupta 

 
Partner 

Membership No.: 127417 

Place: Mumbai  

Date: April 26, 2024 

Samir Sawhney  

Director 

DIN: 09224977 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: April 26, 2024 

 

 
 

 

 

 

   

   

   

 Barkha Hinduja 

Company Secretary 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: April 26, 2024 

 

 

Abhimanyu Diwan

Director

DIN: 10046685 

Place: Mumbai

Date: April 26, 2024

ABHIMAN
YU 
DIWAN

Digitally signed 
by ABHIMANYU 
DIWAN 
Date: 2024.04.26 
18:25:52 +05'30'

BARKHA 
DEEPAK 
HINDUJA

Digitally signed by 
BARKHA DEEPAK 
HINDUJA 
Date: 2024.04.26 
18:26:08 +05'30'

SAMIR 
SAWHN
EY

Digitally signed 
by SAMIR 
SAWHNEY 
Date: 
2024.04.26 
19:46:28 +05'30'

KAPIL 
GUPTA

Digitally signed 
by KAPIL GUPTA 
Date: 
2024.04.26 
22:28:52 +05'30'


